
 
 
 
 
 
 
IFB:  C180002 – Construction Advisory Services 
 
 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM 
 
 
 
Amendment Number: Two 
 
Date Issued:   February 27, 2018 
 
Summary:   See below, and attached Q & A 
 
 
 

• Auditor Independence: this provision is deleted in its entirety in the IFB (Section 2.11) 
and the Contract Form – Appendix B (paragraph 6). 
 

• Minimum Qualifications:  Section 1.4 of the IFB has been revised to clarify that the 
minimum qualifications may not be met through a subcontracting relationship.   
 

• Please note that the bid due date for this procurement is hereby changed to Friday, 
March 16, 2018, at 3:00pm (EDT) 
 

 
By signing below, the bidder attests to receiving and responding to the amendment number 
indicated above.   
 
 
FIRM NAME: ________________________ 
 
REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:  ________________________ 
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Construction Advisory Services  
Question and Answer Summary 

Issued:  February 27, 2018 
 
 
General 
 
Q.54:  Page 88 of the IFB states:  Pursuant to Executive Order #162, contractors and  

subcontractors will also be required to report the gross wages paid to each of their 
employees for the work performed by such employees on the contract utilizing the 
Workforce Utilization Report on a quarterly basis.”  Is this only attributable to the CM and 
trade contractor workforces or are the bidders required to disclose actual gross wages for 
the professional staff assigned to the project? 

 
A.54:  This requirement is required for every entity, including the bidder and any  

subcontractors. Any entity(ies) performing work on this Contract must report the 
gross wages paid to each employee who has performed any degree of labor, by 
use of the Workforce Utilization Report. 

 
Q.55:  If the Bidder is required to provide gross wages, can those be provided on a pooled 

staffing basis (an average of all employees in the organization at that position title)?  
 
A.55:  No. The wages and title for each individual who has performed any degree of work 

on this Contract, must be individually identified on the Workforce Utilization 
Report. See A.54. 

 
Q.56:  Who is responsible for vetting the trade contractors executing work under the CM? 
 
A.56:  The Commission does not currently have this information, but these 

responsibilities will not fall to the bidder.  
 
Q.57:  Has the Commission set a budget for this scope of work?  If so, can that be disclosed? 
 
A.57:  See A.30. 
 
Q.58:  The previous Q&A stated that “The Commission cannot compel the access of such 

information” with regard to access to daily logs of activities.  Is there a right to audit 
clause in the CM agreement which includes flow-down provisions to all contractors and 
subcontractors working on the project? 

 
A.58:  The Commission does not have this information. Also, see A.3. 
 
Q.59:  Is the CM agreement between the CM and the Commission, or is it between the CM and 

another entity?  If so, can that entity be disclosed? 
 
A.59:  The Commission is not party to this construction contract. Also, see IFB Sections 

1.2 and 1.3 for Background and Scope of Work. 
 
Q.60:  The Bid Form calls for pricing by hours and rates of the level of staff working on the 

project. Footnote 1 on the bottom of the Bid Form states “This pricing method allows for 
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some movement within the titles/hours proposed since the grand total cannot be 
exceeded.” As the work progresses the original estimate of hours by level may change 
requiring more time on one level while less on another. Is such an adjustment permitted 
as long as the total dollars bid does not change? Would you please clarify what is meant 
by “some movement”? 

 
A.60:  Yes. That is exactly what is meant.  This format is to allow for movement within the 

titles, as long as the Not to Exceed amount is maintained.   
 
Q.61:  Section 2.24 Ownership of Materials states “Ownership of all data, documentary 

material……. shall belong to the Commission”. In the public accounting profession work 
papers are the property of the accounting firm. During, or at the conclusion of the 
contract, will the CPA firm be expected to supply copies of all work papers to the 
Commission?  

 
A.61: Yes. Copies of work papers shall be provided to the Commission upon request.  
 
Q.62:  In Section 2.7 of the Invitation for Bids, it states that payment will occur upon completion 

of the services.  Can that be clarified to state that payment will be made monthly in 
arrears?   

 
A.62:  Yes, payment will be made monthly, upon receipt of an invoice, for services  

completed.  The wording “upon completion” is meant to inform that there will be 
no pre-payment.   

 
Q.63:  In Section 2.21(A) of the Invitation for Bids, can “highest” be replaced with “commercially 

reasonable”, and can paragraph B be deleted, as these 2 requirements are beyond 
commercially reasonable standards without these changes? 

 
A.63:  Section 2.21 of the RFP – Contractor Code of Conduct – is revised to include a new  

A, B, and C as follows: 
 

A. Furnish all required goods, materials, and services in a manner consistent with 
the underlying terms and conditions of an ensuing agreement.   

B. Submit complete and accurate reports and invoices as required under an 
ensuing agreement. 

C. Not seek, solicit, demand or accept information from Commission staff or 
others to gain an unfair advantage over competition or engage in conduct that 
restricts open and fair competition. 

 
Q.64:  In Section 2.22 of the Invitation for Bids, can the phrase “where the Contract is not 

terminated” be inserted after the phrase “in the event of failure to perform or breach of 
Contract”?  It would be expected that if the contract is terminated, such right to use is not 
necessary. 

 
A.64:  No.  
 
Q.65:  (a) In Section 2.23 of the Invitation for Bids, can the Commission include a provision 

which requires that the policies be provided to the Contractor in writing in advance and 
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(b) that compliance is required only if such policies are applicable to the Contractor in its 
performance of the services?  It is important for the contractor to have an early 
understanding of the requirements.  

 
(c) Also, can the following sentence be added at the end of the first paragraph, in order to 
better insure compliance? 
 
“Any personally-identifiable information of personnel of Contractor or its subcontractors 
shall be maintained by the Commission in compliance with applicable privacy and data 
security laws and regulations; and used, accessed and disclosed solely for the 
purpose(s) provided and duration necessary.” 
 

A.65:  (a) Yes, policies will be provided to the Contractor in writing and in advance.   
 

(b) No. See IFB Section 23.B.i. 
 

(c) The Commission agrees to this language in part as noted below:   
 
“Any personally-identifiable information of personnel of Contractor or its 
subcontractors shall be maintained by the Commission and used, accessed and 
disclosed solely for the purpose(s) provided and duration necessary.” 
 

 
Q.66:  (a) In Section 2.23(A)(i) of the Invitation for Bids, can the requirements in this paragraph 

be limited to the facilities where services are performed and be limited to physical 
security, as other facilities and security requirements would not be applicable?   

 
(b) Also, can paragraph (ii) be clarified to state the following: 

 
The physical security and the information security of project data received by Contractor 
from the Commission shall be adequately protected in accordance with leading industry 
standards.  Physical security of Contractor’s facilities shall be of suitable strength and 
design, and shall be designed to reasonably withstand attempts to gain unauthorized 
access.  

 
A.66:  (a) No. 
 

(b) No. 
 
Q.67:  In Section 2.23(B)(i) of the Invitation for Bids, can the following phrase be inserted after 

“scope of work under this IFB”: 
 

…during the term of the Contract, while on the Commission’s site or network/system to 
the extent that such policies are provided in writing to Contractor, and such policies are 
applicable to Contractor in performance of the Services. 

 
A.67:  No.  
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Q.68:  (a) In Section 2.24 of the Invitation for Bids, can the Commission clarify that ownership 

would only transfer upon applicable payment to the Contractor, and that ownership 
transfer would be limited to deliverables?  

 
(b) Further, can this provision be clarified to state that ownership of Contractor’s materials 
created prior to or separate from the performance of the services for the Commission 
would not transfer?  Ownership of a Contractor’s pre-existing materials would not be 
expected to transfer and also deliverables would not be expected to transfer prior to 
payment. 

 
A.68:  (a) No. The Commission’s ownership is ongoing and is not linked to scheduled  

deliverables. 
 

(b) The Commission confirms this, pursuant to IFB Section 2.24, as written. 
 
Q.69:  IFB Section 2.24: Our clients generally own our reports and other deliverables provided 

to them, subject to restrictions on their distribution to third parties and our retention of 
ownership of certain data, modules, leading practices, and specifications developed or 
used by us or its licensors, or to which we otherwise have rights, including enhancements 
and improvements developed in the course of performing the services.  In the event of 
early termination of the agreement other than for breach by a client we can generally 
agree to provide materials that were ready to be delivered to the client but we do not 
generally view it as appropriate to commit to providing all work-in-progress as such work-
in-progress may not yet be in a form that is ready for delivery to a client.  Would the 
Commission be willing to add some context to this clause to allow Contractor to retain 
intellectual property rights and remove the requirement of Commission ownership of 
unfinished or draft work product? 

 
A.69:  No. Also, see A.68(a). 
 
Q.70:  (a) Are we expected to do anything with the Civil contract? 
 

(b) Who is that contractor for purposes of a conflict check? 
 
A.70:  (a) See A.20. 
 
  (b) The Commission does not have this information. 
 
MBE/WBE Utilization 
 
Q.71:  If a Bidder is an MBE firm, does that firm still need to subcontract 30% to another NYS 

Certified M/WBE? 
 
A.71: No. In the instance described, the participation goal met would be 100%.   
 
Q.72:  With respect to the M/WBE goal of 30%, and seeking clarification on previous questions  

asked, if a bidder were to subcontract 30% of the work to a single MBE firm which is not 
also a WBE firm, would that satisfy the goal?  

 
A.72:  Yes. Also, see A.11. 
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Q.73:  Should the M/WBEs solicited and possibly hired for purposes of this contract be NY State  

certified or would their being from NY State be sufficient? 
 
A.73:  All MBE’s and/or WBE’s being used for this procurement must be NYS-Certified.  

See IFB Section 2.14. 
 
Q.74:  Should the SDVOB businesses solicited and hired for purposes of this contract be NY  

State certified or would their being from NY State be sufficient? 
 
A.74:  All SDVOB’s being used for this procurement must be NYS-Certified. See IFB  

Section 2.15. 
 
Q.75:  The M/WBE (30%) and SDVOB (6%) percentages are also stated as goals. Must those  

percentages be achieved or is there flexibility, and if so how much, regarding reaching 
those percentages?  

 
A.75:  If the goals required under this solicitation cannot be met, a waiver process will be  

undertaken.  All contractors are required to make a Good Faith Effort to meet the 
participation goals set.   

 
Q.76:  Are M/WBEs solicited required to be certified public accountants (CPAs) or can they be  

engineers, consultants, or other trades related to construction which would provide 
assistance to our firm in performing under the contract? 

 
A.76:  The M/WBE’s are not required to be CPA’s. The Commission does not dictate 

where the utilization may be met; that is up to the bidder in how they propose to 
complete the work. 

 
Q.77:  Would a request for waiver on the M/WBE requirement required to be submitted as part 

of our response to the IFB or must it be submitted separately? 
 
A.77:  If a bidder intends to request a waiver from the stated participation goals, either  

partial or full, such waiver must be included in the bid response.  Please be aware 
that any request for waiver must be substantiated.  A bidder must demonstrate 
“Good Faith Effort” has been made.  See Appendices J and K for more information.  

 
Q.78:  Would a request for waiver on the SDVOB requirement required to be submitted as part 

of our response to the IFB or must it be submitted separately? 
 
A.78:  See A. 77. 
 
Q.79:  If waivers are requested for either or both the M/WBE or SDVOB requirements must 

those waivers be obtained prior to the submission of the response to the IFB, or would a 
copy of each waiver form request included in the bid response be sufficient?  

 
A.79: See A. 77. 
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Insurance Requirements 
 
Q.80:  In the Insurer Qualifications and Insurance Requirements Attachment, would the  

Commission consider the following clarifications: 
 
a. In the first paragraph, can the rating requirement be clarified to state that it can be 

from a company that is equivalent to an A.M Best & Co? 
 

b. Can the evidence of the policy be clarified to state that it can be on an industry 
standard Acord form and can the requirement of producing the policy in the event of 
litigation be limited to where the Commission is named in a suit or demand arising out 
of our performance of Services and there is a reasonable expectation of coverage for 
Commission under such policy or policies? 
 

c. (1) Can the notification requirement be clarified to state notification of changes is only   
required for “adverse” material changes in the policy and only if they result in 
noncompliance, pursuant to policy provisions, if replacement insurance meeting 
the requirements and specifications herein cannot be obtained?  

 
(2) Also, can the Contractor be required to provide such notification, rather than the  

carrier? 
 

d. (1) In General Conditions paragraph A3, can the phrase “in a form satisfactory to the  
Commission” be changed to “on an industry standard Acord form”?   

 
(2) Also, can the following phrase be inserted after “thirty (30) days prior written  

notice”? 
 

“to policyholder first, who in turn shall notify insurer and Agency if replacement 
insurance meeting the requirements and specifications herein cannot be obtained” 

 
e. Also, in paragraph A3, can paragraphs a and b be deleted as not applicable? 

 
f. In General Conditions paragraph A4, can the phrase “pursuant to Commission’s 

Additional Insured status” be inserted after the phrase “maybe available to the 
Commission”, and also the word “errors” be replaced by the phrase “acts or omissions 
pursuant to the”? 
 

g. In General Conditions paragraph A7, can the phrase “or alternatively” be inserted 
after the phrase “or applicable”? 

 
h. In General Conditions paragraph B, can the paragraph immediately under the policy 

limits be modified to state the following in order to clarify the coverage requirements? 
 

“Coverage shall include the following: premises liability; independent contractors 
for vicarious liability; contractual liability for insured contracts; cross liability for 
additional insured’s; products/completed operations; explosion, collapse, and 
underground hazards; contractor means and methods; liability resulting from 
Section 240 or Section 241 of the New York State Labor Law. “ 
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i. Also, can the paragraph which starts “Policies shall name the Commission as 

Additional Insureds” be modified to state the following? 
 

Policies shall include the Commission as Additional Insureds with respect to 
Contractor’s acts or omissions in performance of Services provided under this 
Agreement or SOW.   

 
j. Also, in paragraph 2, Professional Liability, can the $1,000,000 reference be limited to 

“per claim and aggregate”, and the word “negligent” be changed to “wrongful”? 
 
A.80:  
 

a. No. 
  

b. No. 
 

c. (1) No. 
 
(2) No. The Insurance Requirements section of Appendix N already requires that 
the Bidder is insured. See paragraph 3 under Insurance Requirements. 
 

d. (1) No.  
 
(2) No. The Commission requires 30-day prior, written notice. To the extent the 
policyholder wants to be informed sooner, they must coordinate with the Insurer. 
 

e. No. 
 

f. The language will remain unchanged. The language referenced for change in this 
question is not present in the Commission’s document. 
 

g. No. 
 

h. No. 
 

i. No. 
  

j. The Commission agrees to the requested changes in part (inclusion of “per claim,” 
but not “and aggregate” and the change from “negligent” to “negligent or 
wrongful.” See the revised Appendix B. 

 
Q.81:  IFB Section 2.13: We may need to seek certain changes to this section consistent with  

our firm policy on such matters.  Would the Commission be willing to accept certain 
changes to Appendix N? 

 
A.81:  Per the Question and Answer sessions under this procurement, the Commission  

has agreed to certain changes to Appendix N. See A.80.   
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Agreement Terms  
 
Q.82:  Would the commission consider adding the following to the end of paragraph 8 of the  

Agreement, in order to permit mutual agreement of such changes? 
 
“, subject to a mutually agreeable change order to reflect changes relating to such 
suspension. If the parties do not agree to resume Services within one hundred and 
twenty (120) days of Contractor’s receipt of such suspension notice, Contractor may 
terminate the Services upon written notice to the Commission. “ 

 
A.82:  No. The Commission does not agree to this change. 
 
Q.83:  Can Section 3 of the Agreement be clarified to state that fees will be paid monthly in  

arrears, and that interest may be applicable for late payments in accordance with Article 
11-A of the New York State Finance Law? 

 
A.83:  Yes. See A.62 and IFB Section 2.7. 
 
Q.84:  (a) In Section 7 of the Agreement, we believe that in paragraph a, the correct reference is  

Section 12, not 11.  Can this be corrected?   
 

(b) In paragraph b, in the paragraph following subsection vii, can the phrase “to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the Commission” be replaced with “for which termination is 
sought”?   

 
(c) Also, can the broad right to set-off be removed, or limited as not applicable to the type 
of services to be provided?     

 
(d) Further, would the commission consider providing the right for the Contractor to 
terminate if Contractor determines that the performance of any part of the Services would 
be in conflict with law, or independence or professional rules? If there is such a conflict of 
interest, it would not be proper for the Contractor to continue to provide the services. 

 
A.84:  (a) The Commission acknowledges this correction.  See revised Contract Form.   
 

(b) No. 
 

(c) No. 
 

(d) No. 
 
Q.85:  In Section 10, paragraph (b), of the Agreement can the following additional exception to  

the definition of Confidential Information be added to the list of exceptions, in order to 
clarify that if the Contractor received the information from a proper source, it would not be 
required to maintain the confidentiality of such information? 
 
“becomes available to the Contractor on a nonconfidential basis from a source that the 
Contractor believes is not prohibited from disclosing such information to the Contractor.” 
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A.85:  No. Section 10, paragraph (b) indicates disclosure by the Commission to the  

Contractor. 
 
Q.86:  In Section 10, paragraph (d), of the Agreement, would the Commission consider 

changing the phrase “to the maximum extent permitted by” to “as required by”? 
 
A.86:  Yes. See Revised Appendix B. 
 
Q.87:  Can the following be added to the end of Section 10 of the Agreement, in order to clarify  

appropriate retention and internal use limits? 
 
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Contractor shall have the right to retain 
copies of Confidential Information to the extent necessary to evidence the Services, 
provided that Contractor retains such copies in accordance with its confidentiality 
obligations hereunder.  All Services and Deliverables shall be solely for the Commission’s 
benefit, and are not intended to be relied upon by any person or entity other than the 
Commission.  The Commission shall not disclose the Services or Deliverables, or refer to 
the Services or Deliverables in any communication, to any person or entity other than the 
Commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Commission shall not be prohibited from 
creating its own materials based on the content of such Services and Deliverables and 
using and disclosing such Commission-created materials for external purposes, provided 
that the Commission does not, expressly or by implication, in any manner whatsoever, 
attribute such materials to Contractor or otherwise refer to or identify Contractor in 
connection with such materials.  

 
A.87:  No. 
 
Q.88:  (a) In the Liability and Indemnification Section of the Agreement (Appendix B, Section  

13), can the indemnity be limited to bodily injury and damage to real or tangible personal 
property to the extent directly and proximately caused by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Contractor while engaged in the performance of the Services?  These 
limits are generally the norm in New York governmental contracting.  

 
(b) Also, would the Commission consider adding a commercially reasonable limitation on 
damages, such as the following? 
 
Contractor, its subsidiaries and subcontractors, and their respective personnel shall not 
be liable to the Commission for any claims, liabilities, or expenses relating to this 
Agreement, any SOW, or the services (“Claims”) for an aggregate amount in excess of 
the fees paid by the Commission to Contractor under such SOW, except to the extent 
resulting from the recklessness, bad faith or intentional misconduct of Contractor or its 
subcontractors.  In no event shall Contractor, its subsidiaries or subcontractors, or their 
respective personnel be liable to the Commission for any loss of use, data, goodwill, 
revenues or profits (whether or not deemed to constitute a direct Claim), or any 
consequential, special, indirect, incidental, punitive, or exemplary loss, damage, or 
expense relating to this Agreement, any SOW, or the services.  In circumstances where 
any limitation on damages or indemnification provision hereunder is unavailable, the 
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aggregate liability of Contractor, its subsidiaries and subcontractors, and their respective 
personnel for any Claim shall not exceed an amount that is proportional to the relative 
fault that the conduct of Contractor and its subcontractors bears to all other conduct 
giving rise to such Claim.  

 
A.88:  (a) No. 
 

(b) No. 
 
Q.89:  In the Relationship Section of the Agreement (Appendix B, Section 14), would the  

Commission consider adding the following phrase at the end of this Section: “for any 
taxes, unemployment insurance and workers' compensation related to this Agreement”? 

 
A.89:  No.  
 
Q.90:  Would the Commission consider adding approval of deliverables and change order  

provisions to the Agreement, similar to the following? 
 
Approval of Deliverables. 
The Commission shall approve each Deliverable that conforms in all material respects to 
the requirements therefor set forth in the applicable SOW.  Approval of a Deliverable 
shall be deemed given if the Commission has not provided Contractor with written notice 
of such approval or with written notice that a Deliverable does not conform with the 
foregoing within fifteen (15) days of delivery. 
 
For purposes of this Agreement “Deliverable” means all data, documentary material and 
reports originated and prepared exclusively for the Commission as a result of the 
Services.   

 
Change Order.  
Either party may request changes to the Services, Deliverables, and/or any other aspect 
of an SOW through a written change request (“Change Request”).  Promptly thereafter 
the parties shall discuss what impact the Change Request will have on the Services and 
Deliverables and on pricing, timing, and other terms of the applicable SOW.  Any 
changes to an SOW agreed upon by the parties as a result of the foregoing process shall 
be set forth in a change order signed by the parties (“Change Order”).  Once a Change 
Order is signed it shall amend, and become part of, the applicable SOW.  Neither party is 
obligated to change the Services, Deliverables, or any other aspect of an SOW unless a 
Change Order for such change has been signed by the parties. 

 
A.90:  No.  The Commission does not agree to these proposed changes to the IFB.  The  

services to be performed under an ensuing agreement are defined in the Scope of 
Work in the IFB.  There will not be a Change Order or Statement of Work process 
under the ensuing agreement.  Any change in the work to be performed under this 
solicitation would require prior approval of the Office of the State Comptroller and 
an amendment to the agreement between the parties.    
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Q.91:  Appendix B, Items 6 & 7: Our agreements generally provide that we may terminate them 

if we reasonably determine that we can no longer provide the Services in accordance 
with applicable law or professional obligations.  Would the Commission consider allowing 
Contractor to terminate should our status as Independent Auditor in accordance with 
AICPA change? 

 
A.91: See A.84(d) 
 
Q.92:  Appendix B, Item 13: We generally neither request nor provide indemnities.  We do on  

occasion agree to mutual indemnities with our clients for bodily injury or damage to 
tangible property to the extent directly caused by our negligence or misconduct, and for 
intellectual property infringement caused by our deliverables, subject to customary 
commercial exceptions.  Would the Commission consider removing or modifying this 
clause? 

 
A.92:  No. 
 
Q.93:  We generally limit our total aggregate liability under an Agreement to the fees paid for the  

services under which any liability is principally alleged to arise.  We generally provide that 
will not in any case be liable for consequential, incidental, indirect, punitive or special 
damages.  Would the Commission be willing to add such a provision to Appendix B? 

 
A.93:  No 
 
Minimum Qualifications 
 
Q.94:  Can Section 2.11 of the Invitation for Bids and Section 6 of the Agreement be clarified to 

state that the work will be performed under AICPA consulting standards? 
 
A.94:  Upon evaluation of this clause, Section 2.11 of the RFP and paragraph 6 of the  

Contract Form are hereby deleted and first sentence of the second paragraph of 
Section 1.3, Scope of Services is revised as follows: 

 
For the Commission to complete this cost analysis, we require the expertise of a 
firm to provide construction advisory services under AICPA consulting standards. 

 
Q.95:  Will the NY Gaming Commission accept bids from Joint Ventures? 
 
A.95:  Yes, so long as the work is done pursuant to AICPA consulting standards. Also, 

see IFB Section 3.2(D). 
 
Q.96:  If a qualified NY Licensed CPA firm enters into a Joint Venture agreement with a non-

CPA firm, and the Joint Venture (“JV”) possesses the requisite experience, would the JV 
then meet the guidelines of a qualified bidder under section 1.4?   

 
A.96:  See A.95 
 
Q.97:  In the event that a Joint Venture is permitted, are there any restrictions on participation 

percentage between the CPA firm and non-CPA firm? 
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A.97:  A joint venture is permitted (See IFB Section 3.2(D)).  If a joint bid is submitted, the   

bid must define the responsibilities that each firm is proposing to undertake for the 
procurement.  A joint venture should not be formed just to meet the qualifications 
(i.e. the joint firm is not serving a significant role in the work to be done under an 
ensuing contract). Also, see A.95. 

 
Q.98:  In the event that a Joint Venture is permitted, if one member is an MBE, and performs 

30% or more of the scope of work, does that satisfy the 30% M/WBE goal? 
 
A.98:  Yes. That information should be included in the M/WBE Proposed Utilization Plan. 
 
Q.99:  In the event that a Joint Venture is permitted, would the JV itself need to obtain an 

insurance policy or could the JV partners separately satisfy the requisite insurance 
coverages? 

 
A.99:  The insurance requirements may be met in a number of ways – by the Prime alone, 

by the prime and the joining firm, or under the joint entity.  How the insurance is 
met depends on the work to be performed.  If all the work and all the people who 
will perform services under the contract (workers’ compensation) are covered, 
then the insurance requirement will have been met. 

 
Q.100: If a bidder is not a CPA firm but meets the requirements of Section 1.4 D and 

subcontracts to a qualified CPA firm which meets the requirements of Section 1.4 A-C, 
would the Bidder and its subcontractor be collectively qualified to submit a bid? 

 
A.100: No. Section 1.4 Minimum Qualifications is hereby revised to include the following:  
 

Subcontracting is permitted under this solicitation; however, subcontractors may 
not be used to meet the minimum qualifications.   
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THIS AGREEMENT made this [XXX] day of [XXXXXXX], 2018 by and between the 

NEW YORK STATE GAMING COMMISSION, an executive agency of the State of New York 

having an office at One Broadway Center, Post Office Box 7500, Schenectady, New York 

12301-7500 (the "Commission"), and [name of company] having an office at [address of 

company] (the "Contractor"). 

 

WHEREAS the Commission issued an Invitation for Bids on February 2, 2018 soliciting 

responses from qualified firms to provide construction advisory services, and clarified the 

requirements of the Invitation for Bids with Addenda, including Questions and Answers dated 

February 14, 2018, and February 27, 2018, (collectively, the "IFB"); and 

 

WHEREAS the Contractor submitted a bid response, dated [XXXXXXXXX] (the "Bid"), 

which the Commission selected;   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises 

hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Scope of Services.  The Contractor agrees to provide the Commission with construction 

advisory services as more fully set forth in the IFB.  Both the IFB and the Bid are hereby 

incorporated into this Agreement with the same force and effect as if they were fully set 

forth herein. 

 

2. Term. The Agreement shall commence upon approval of the Office of the State 

Comptroller and continue for four years.  The Agreement may be extended for two, six-

month periods, if needed for the completion of services.  Any extension shall be subject 

to the approval of the Office of the State Comptroller.   
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3. Compensation, Invoicing and Payment  

 
Contractor will be compensated for work performed, based on the titles and rates 

provided in the Bid Form, which is incorporated into the Agreement. There will be no 

reimbursement for travel or other incidentals under the ensuing agreement. Sales tax must 

not be included on invoices as New York State agencies are tax exempt.  A tax-exempt 

form will be provided if needed. 

 

Contractor will be compensated as provided herein for work begun by Contractor during 

the term of the Agreement, but completed after the Agreement term end date.   

 

 Payment under the Contract will be in accordance with New York State Prompt Payment 

Law (Article 11-A of the New York State Finance Law). Payment for services will be 

made upon completion of the services, in accordance with the terms of this IFB, and upon 

receipt by the Commission of a proper invoice.   

 

 Invoices shall be submitted, on a monthly basis, as a PDF email attachment and directed 

to the New York State Business Service Center at accountspayable@ogs.ny.gov and copy 

the Commission’s Finance Office at: 

gaming.dl.Financial.Management.Invoices@gaming.ny.gov.  

 

 The Commission shall promptly process all payments due to the consultant that conform 

to the provisions of this IFB and are approved by the Commission’s Finance Officer, or 

designee.    

 

4. Approvals Required.  This Agreement, and any extension of the term of this Agreement 

or any amendment of the provisions of this Agreement, shall not be effective and binding 

upon the Commission, the State of New York, or the Contractor, unless and until 

approved by the New York State Attorney General and the State Comptroller.  The 

Commission agrees to exercise its best efforts to obtain such approval. 

 

mailto:accountspayable@ogs.ny.gov
mailto:gaming.dl.Financial.Management.Invoices@gaming.ny.gov
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5. Mutual Cooperation.  The objective of this Agreement is to ensure that services are 

provided to the Commission as set forth in this Agreement.  The parties agree to 

cooperate fully in good faith and to assist each other, to the extent reasonably practicable, 

in order to accomplish that objective. 

 
 

6. Termination.  

a. The Commission shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by providing 

written notice to the Contractor in accordance with Section 11 of this Agreement for 

any of the following:  

i. convenience; or 

ii. a finding that the certification filed by the Contractor in accordance with 

New York State Finance Law § 139-k was intentionally false or 

intentionally incomplete.  

b. The Commission shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any of the 

following causes: 

i. the Contractor’s fraudulent or otherwise criminal act against the 

Commission; 

ii. a material breach by the Contractor of any of the provisions of this 

Agreement; 

iii. the Contractor’s filing for bankruptcy in a court of competent jurisdiction; 

iv. a determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that the Contractor is 

bankrupt or insolvent; 

v. a good faith determination by the Commission that continuation of the 

contract could place the integrity or public perception of the Commission 

in jeopardy;  

vi. a determination by the Commission’s Executive Director or his/her 

designee that the Contractor is non-responsible; or 

vii. a conviction of the Contractor or any of its directors, officers, or 

employees, of any criminal offense which, in the sole reasonable opinion 

of the Commission’s Executive Director, would be prejudicial to public 

confidence in the Lottery or the Commission. 
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If the Commission exercises the right to terminate this Agreement for cause, the 

Commission shall give the Contractor a written notice that states the cause for which 

termination is sought. The Contractor shall be entitled to a period of thirty (30) days 

from receipt of such notice to correct or cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction 

of the Commission.   

 

If termination is sought due to a criminal conviction described in subparagraph (vii) 

of paragraph (b) of this Section, the cause for termination shall be deemed to be cured 

if the Contractor causes or obtains the dismissal, resignation, retirement or other 

removal of the person convicted of such offense during such thirty (30) day period. 

 

Where the Contractor is determined by the Commission’s Executive Director or his or 

her designee to be non-responsible described in subparagraph (vi) of paragraph (b) of 

this Section upon written notice to the Contractor, and a reasonable opportunity to be 

heard with appropriate Commission officials or staff, the Agreement may be 

terminated by the Executive Director or his or her designee at the Contractor’s 

expense.  In such event, the Executive Director or his or her designee may complete 

the contractual requirements in any manner he or she may deem advisable and pursue 

available legal or equitable remedies for breach. 

 

(c)  In the event that the Agreement is terminated under the provisions of (a) or (b) of 

this section, Contractor shall be entitled to payment for services rendered and 

materials provided prior to the termination, and subject to setoff, if any, for claims by 

the Commission against the Contractor.  In no event shall the Commission be liable 

for lost profits, incidental, consequential, or special damages based upon the exercise 

of the Commission’s termination rights. 

 

 

7. Responsibility. 

a. The Contractor shall at all times during the Contract term remains responsible as 

defined by New York State Finance Law §163(c).  The Contractor agrees, if 

requested by the Commission’s Executive Director, or his or her designee, to 

present evidence regarding the Contractor’s continuing legal authority to do 
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business in the State of New York; integrity; experience; ability; prior 

performance; and organizational and financial capacity. 

b. The Commission’s Executive Director, or his or her designee, in his or her sole 

discretion, reserves the right to suspend any or all activities under this Agreement, 

at any time, when he or she discovers information that calls into question the 

responsibility of the Contractor.  In the event of such suspension, the Contractor 

will be given written notice outlining the particulars of such suspension.  Upon 

issuance of such notice, the Contractor must comply with the terms of the 

suspension.  The Contractor may resume performance of this Agreement at such 

time as the Commission’s Executive Director, or his or her designee, issues a 

written notice authorizing its resumption. 

 

8. Conflicts of Interest. 

a. The Contractor shall provide a completed “Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of 

Interest or Detrimental Effect” form (or any updated form identified by the 

Commission for the same purpose), signed by an authorized executive or legal 

representative of the Contractor, attesting that the Contractor’s performance of the 

services neither creates a conflict of interest with, nor positions the Contractor to 

breach, any other contract currently in force with the State of New York; and that 

the Contractor will not act in any manner that is detrimental to any State project 

on which the Contractor is rendering services. 

b. The Contractor hereby reaffirms the attestations made in its Bid, and covenants 

and represents that there is, and shall be, no actual or potential conflict of interest 

that could prevent the Contractor's satisfactory or ethical performance of duties 

required to be performed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Contractor 

shall have a duty to notify the Commission immediately of any actual or potential 

conflicts of interest. 

c. In conjunction with any subcontract under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 

obtain and deliver to the Commission, prior to entering into a subcontract, a 

completed “Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of Interest or Detrimental Effect” 

form (or any updated form identified by the Commission for the same purpose), 

signed by an authorized executive or legal representative of the subcontractor 

with which the Contractor contracted. The Contractor shall also require in any 
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subcontracting agreement that the Contractor’s subcontractor, in conjunction with 

any sub-subcontracting agreement it enters, shall obtain and deliver to the 

Commission a signed and completed “Vendor Assurance of No Conflict of 

Interest or Detrimental Effect” form (or any updated form identified by the 

Commission for the same purpose) for each of its subcontractors (i.e. sub-

subcontractors to the Contractor) prior to the subcontractor entering into a sub-

subcontract. 

d. The Commission and the Contractor recognize that conflicts may occur in the 

future due to existing or new relationships the Contractor may have. The 

Commission will review the nature of any relationship and reserves the right to 

terminate this Agreement if, in the judgment of the Commission, a real or 

potential conflict of interest cannot be cured. 

 

9. Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure. 

a. For the purposes of this section, “Confidential Information” means any 

information not generally known to the public, whether oral or written, that the 

Commission identifies as confidential and discloses to the Contractor so that the 

Contractor can provide services to the Commission pursuant to this Agreement.  

The Commission will identify written Confidential Information by marking it 

with the word “Confidential” and will identify oral Confidential Information as 

confidential at the time of disclosure to the Contractor.  Confidential Information 

may include, but is not limited to the following: 

i. Operational and infrastructure information relating to bid documents, 

plans, drawings, specifications, reports, product information;  

ii. Business and security processes and procedures;  

iii. Personnel and organizational data, and financial statements; information 

system IP addresses, passwords, security controls, architectures and 

designs; and  

iv. Such other data, information and images that the Commission deems 

confidential.   

b. Confidential Information does not include information that, at the time of the 

Commission’s disclosure to the Contractor: 
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i. Is already in the public domain or becomes publicly known through no act 

of the Contractor; 

ii. Is already known by the Contractor free of any confidential obligations; 

iii. Is information that the Commission has approved in writing for disclosure; 

or 

iv. Is required to be disclosed by the Contractor pursuant to law so long as the 

Contractor provides the Commission with notice of such disclosure 

requirement and the opportunity to defend prior to any such disclosure. 

c. The Contractor may use Confidential Information solely for the purposes of 

providing services to the Commission pursuant to this Agreement.  The 

Contractor shall not make copies of any written Confidential Information without 

the express written permission of the Commission.  The Commission’s disclosure 

of Confidential Information to the Contractor shall not convey to the Contractor 

any right to, or interest in, such Confidential Information and the Commission 

shall retain all right and title to such Confidential Information at all times. 

d. The Contractor shall hold Confidential Information confidential as required by 

law.  The Contractor shall safeguard Confidential Information with at least the 

same level of care and security, using all reasonable and necessary security 

measures, devices and procedures that the Contractor uses to maintain its own 

confidential information. 

e. Upon written request by the Commission, the Contractor shall return all written 

Confidential Information to the Commission. 

 

10. Records Retention.  The retention of records required by the Contractor under this 

Agreement shall be retained for the periods specified in Appendix A, attached hereto.  

Such records may be retained in their original form, or in any other reliable and readily 

retrievable format, at the option of the Contractor. 

 

11. Notices.  All notices required by this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and sent 

by certified mail return receipt requested. All other communications shall be sufficient if 

communicated in writing to the following addresses or to such other addresses as may be 

designated from time to time by the parties in writing:  

 



  C180002 

8 | P a g e  
 

As to the Commission: 

Executive Director of the New York State Gaming Commission 

One Broadway Center 

Post Office Box 7500 

Schenectady NY  12301-7500 

 

As to the Contractor: 

[Name and Address] 

 

12. Liability and Indemnification.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to 

life and property due to activities of the Contractor, the Contractor’s subcontractors and 

sub-subcontractors (if any), and the Contractor’s agents or employees, in connection with 

performance of services under this Agreement. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, 

and hold harmless the Commission and the State of New York, and their officers, 

employees, agents and assigns from and against any and all third party claims, liabilities, 

losses, damages, costs, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be 

incurred, suffered, or required in whole or in part by an actual or alleged act or omission 

of: 

a. The Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns, and/or 

b. A Subcontractor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns.   

 

13. Relationship.  The relationship of the Contractor to the Commission arising out of this 

Agreement shall be that of an independent contractor.  The Contractor, all employees of 

the Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractor(s) and sub-subcontractors, if any, in 

accordance with its status as an independent contractor, agree that they will conduct 

themselves consistent with such status, that they will neither hold themselves out as, nor 

claim to be, an officer or employee of the Commission or the State of New York, and that 

they will not make any claim, demand or application for any right or privilege applicable 

to an officer or employee of the Commission or the State of New York, including, but not 

limited to, workers' compensation coverage, unemployment insurance benefits, Social 

Security coverage, or retirement membership or credit.  
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Nothing in this Agreement shall impose any liability or duty on the Commission or the 

State of New York, for any acts, omissions, liabilities or obligations of the Contractor, 

subcontractor, sub-subcontractor, or any agent of the Contractor for any taxes, 

unemployment insurance and workers' compensation. The Contractor hereby agrees to 

defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Commission and the State of New York against 

any such liabilities. 

 

14. Force Majeure. A Force Majeure occurrence is an event or effect that cannot be 

reasonably anticipated or controlled.  As used herein, Force Majeure means fire, 

explosion, action of the elements, governmental interference, rationing or any other cause 

which is beyond the control of the party affected and which, by the exercise of reasonable 

diligence, said party is unable to prevent.   

 

Neither the Contractor nor the Commission shall be liable to the other for any delay in or 

failure of performance under the Agreement resulting from this IFB due to a Force 

Majeure occurrence.  Any such delay in or failure of performance shall not constitute a 

breach of the Agreement or give rise to any liability for damages.  The Commission shall 

extend the period for performance, subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this 

Agreement, to enable complete performance by the Contractor if reasonable diligence is 

exercised after the cause of delay or failure has been removed.   

 

15. Documents Incorporated.  Appendix A, Standard Clauses for New York State 

Contracts, dated January 2014, the IFB, and the Bid are hereby incorporated to the same 

force and effect as if set forth herein.   

 

16. Order of Precedence.  Any conflict between this Agreement and the documents 

incorporated herein shall be resolved according to the following order of precedence: 

 
a. Appendix A – Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts; 

b. Any amendments to the Agreement; 

c. Agreement; 

d. IFB and any clarifying responses by the Commission; 

e. Bid and any clarifying responses by the Contractor. 
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17. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

a. A waiver of enforcement of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver of any other provision of this Agreement nor shall it preclude the affected 

party from subsequently enforcing such provision. 

b. The headings contained in this Agreement are intended for ease of reference only 

and shall not be interpreted to limit or modify any of the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 
[CONTRACTOR]     NEW YORK STATE 
       GAMING COMMISSION     
 
By:__________________________   By:____________________________       
       
Title:_________________________   Title:___________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________   Date:___________________________ 
 
 
NEW YORK STATE     NEW YORK STATE COMPTROLLER 
Attorney General     Thomas P. DiNapoli 
 
By:__________________________   By:_____________________________ 
 
Title:_________________________   Title:____________________________ 
 
Date:_________________________   Date:____________________________ 
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Acknowledgement 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY INDIVIDUAL 
STATE OF__________________________ ) 
SS.: 
COUNTY OF________________________________ ) 
 
On this ___________day of _______________, 20____, before me personally came 
________________________________, to me known and known to me to be the person described in and 
who  executed the foregoing instrument and he/she acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same. 
 

___________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY UNINCORPORATED ASSOCIATION 
STATE OF___________________________) 
SS.: 
COUNTY OF_________________________________ ) 
 
On this ___________day of ________________,20____, before me personally came 
_______________________________, to me known and known to me to be the person described in and 
who executed the above instrument, who, being duly sworn by me, did for himself/herself depose and say 
that he/she is a member of the firm of ____________________ and that he/she executed the foregoing 
instrument in the firm name of ____________________, and that he/she had authority to sign same, and 
he/she did duly acknowledge to me that he/she executed the same as the act and deed of said firm of  
________________________, for the uses and purposes mentioned therein. 
 

___________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY CORPORATION 
STATE OF____________________________) 
SS.: 
COUNTY OF___________________________________) 
 
On this ___________day of ______________, in the year 20__, before me personally 
came__________________________, to me known, who, being by me duly sworn did depose and say that 
he/she resides in ___________________________; that he/she is the____________________________ 
of the _____________________________, the corporation described in and which executed the above 
instrument; that he/she knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such a 
corporate seal, that it was so affixed by the order of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that he 
he/she signed his/her name thereto by like order. 
 

____________________________ 
Notary Public 
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INSURER QUALIFICATIONS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
Insurer Qualifications 
 
All insurance required under this IFB must be written by company rating of “A-” or 
better rated by A.M. Best & Co., have a record of successful continuous 
operation, are licensed, admitted (If coverage is provided by a non-admitted 
carrier, an ELANY Affidavit must accompany the certificate), and authorized to do 
business in the State of New York, and are approved by the Commission.   
 
Required coverage and limits must be put into effect as of the effective date of 
the Contract and must remain in effect throughout the term of the Contract, as 
determined by the Commission.   
 
Insurance Requirements 
 
Prior to the start of work the Contractor shall procure at its sole cost and 
expense, and shall maintain in force at all times during the term of the Contract, 
policies of insurance as herein below set forth, written by companies authorized 
by the New York State Department of Financial Services to issue insurance in 
the State of New York (Admitted Carriers).  The Commission may, at its sole 
discretion, accept policies of insurance written by a non-authorized carrier or 
carriers when Certificates and/or other policy documentation is accompanied by 
a completed Excess Lines Association of New York (ELANY) Affidavit; provided 
that nothing herein shall be construed to require the Commission to accept 
insurance placed with a non-authorized carrier under any circumstances.  
 
Upon award, the Contractor shall deliver to the Commission evidence of such 
policies as defined below.  In the event there is a claim asserted that is covered 
by insurance and upon request of the Commission, the Contractor shall make 
available for inspection to the Commission, at Commission headquarters, during 
reasonable business hours, any applicable policy required by this Contract. 
 
Throughout the Contract period, the contractor shall notify the Commission of 
any material changes to the policy, or any cancellations prior to the expiration 
date.  The carrier shall also send notification of cancellation, termination, or 
failure to renew any policy in accordance with the policy provisions when 
practicable. 
 
General Conditions  

 
A. Conditions Applicable to Insurance.  All policies of insurance required by 

this agreement must meet the following requirements:  
 



Appendix N  C180002 

1. Coverage Types and Policy Limits.  The types of coverage and policy 
limits required from the Contractor are specified in Paragraph B below – 
Specific Coverages and Limits.  

 
2. Policy Forms.  Policies must be written on an occurrence basis, except 
as may be otherwise specifically provided herein, or agreed to in writing by 
the Commission.  Under certain circumstances, the Commission may elect to 
accept policies written on a claims-made basis provided that, at a minimum, 
the policy remains in force throughout the performance of the services and for 
three (3) years after completion of the Contract. If the policy is cancelled or 
not renewed during that time, the Contractor must purchase at its sole 
expense Discovery Clause coverage sufficient to complete the 3-year period 
after completion of the Contract. Written proof of this extended reporting 
period must be provided to the Commission prior to the expiration or 
cancellation of the policy.  

 
3. Certificates of Insurance/Notices. Contractor shall provide a Certificate 
or Certificates of Insurance, in a form satisfactory to the Commission, before 
commencing any work under this Contract. Certificates shall be mailed using 
the contact information provided in the IFB. 
 
Unless otherwise agreed, policies shall be written so as to include a provision 
that the policy will not be canceled, materially changed, or not renewed 
without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice except for non-payment as 
required by law to the Commission.   

 
Certificates of Insurance shall:  

 
a. Be in the form approved by the Commission.  

 
b. Disclose any deductible, self-insured retention, aggregate limit or any 

exclusion to the policy that materially changes the coverage required by 
the Contract. 

  
c. Specify the Additional Insureds and Named Insureds as required herein. 

  
d. When coverage is provided by a non-admitted carrier, be accompanied by 

a completed ELANY Affidavit, and be signed by an authorized 
representative of the insurance carrier or producer.  

 
Only original documents (Certificates of Insurance and other attachments) will 
be accepted.  
 
4. Primary Coverage. All insurance policies shall provide that the required 

coverage shall apply on a primary and not on an excess or contributing basis 
as to any other insurance that may be available to the Commission for any 
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claim arising from the Contractor’s Work under this Contract, or as a result of 
the Contractor’s activities. Any other insurance maintained by the 
Commission shall be excess of and shall not contribute with the Contractor’s 
insurance regardless of the “other insurance” clause contained in the 
Commission’s own policy of insurance.  

 
5. Policy Renewal/Expiration.  At least two weeks prior to the expiration of 
any policy required by this Contract, evidence of renewal or replacement 
policies of insurance with terms no less favorable to the Commission than the 
expiring policies shall be delivered to the Commission in the manner required 
for service of notice in Paragraph A.3 above. If, at any time during the term of 
this Contract, the coverage provisions and limits of the policies required 
herein do not meet the provisions and limits set forth in the Contract or proof 
thereof is not provided to the Commission, the Contractor shall immediately 
cease Work on the Project. The Contractor shall not resume Work on the 
Project until authorized to do so by the Commission. Any delay, time lost, or 
additional cost incurred as a result of the Contractor not having insurance 
required by the Contract or not providing proof of same in a form acceptable 
to the Commission, shall not give rise to a delay claim or any other claim 
against the Commission. Should the Contractor fail to provide or maintain any 
insurance required by this Contract, or proof thereof is not provided to the 
Commission, the Commission may withhold further Contract payments, treat 
such failure as a breach or default of the Contract, and/or, after providing 
written notice to the Contractor, require the Surety if, any, to secure 
appropriate coverage and/or purchase insurance complying with the Contract 
and charge back such purchase to the Contractor.  

 
6. Self-Insured Retention/Deductibles.  Additional surety/security may be 
required in certain circumstances. The Contractor shall be solely responsible 
for all claim expenses and loss payments within the deductible or self-insured 
retention.  

 
7. Subcontractors.  Should the Contractor engage a Sub-contractor, the 
Contractor shall endeavor to impose the insurance requirements of this 
document on the Sub-contractor, as applicable. Required insurance limits 
should be determined commensurate with the work of the Sub-contractor. 
Proof thereof shall be supplied to the Commission.  

 
B.  Specific Coverages and Limits.  The types of insurance and minimum 

policy limits   shall be as provided below.  
 
1. General Liability.  Commercial General Liability Insurance (CGL), covering 

the liability of the Contractor for bodily injury, property damage, and 
personal/advertising injury arising from all work and operations under this 
Contract. The limits under such policy shall not be less than the following:  

 



Appendix N  C180002 

• Each Occurrence limit:  $1,000,000  
• General Aggregate:    $2,000,000 
• Products/Completed Operations should equal the General Aggregate 

limit 
• Personal Advertising Injury      $1,000,000 
• Damage to Rented Premises   $50,000 
• Medical Expense                      $5,000  

 
Coverage shall include, but not be limited to, the following: premises liability; 
independent contractors; blanket contractual liability, including tort liability of 
another assumed in a Contract; defense and/or indemnification obligations, 
including obligations assumed under this Contract; cross liability for 
additional insured’s; products/completed operations for a term of no less 
than three years, commencing upon acceptance of the work, as required by 
the Contract; explosion, collapse, and underground hazards; contractor 
means and methods; liability resulting from Section 240 or Section 241 of the 
New York State Labor Law.  

 
The following ISO forms must be endorsed to the policy:  

 
• CG 00 01 01 96 or an equivalent – Commercial General Liability 

Coverage Form 
• CG 20 10 11 85, or, an equivalent- Additional Insured-Owner, Lessees 

or Contractors (Form B)   
 

Limits may be provided through a combination of primary and 
umbrella/excess liability policies.  

 
Policies shall name the Commission as Additional Insureds, and such 
coverage shall be extended to afford Additional Insured status to those 
entities during the Products/Completed Operations term.  

 
The CGL policy, and any umbrella/excess policies used to meet the “Each 
Occurrence” limits specified above, must be endorsed to be primary with 
respects to the coverage afforded the Additional Insureds, and such 
polic(ies) shall be primary to, and non-contributing with, any other insurance 
maintained by the Commission. Any other insurance maintained by the 
Commission shall be in excess of and shall not contribute with the 
Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s insurance, regardless of the “Other 
Insurance” clause contained in either party’s policy of insurance. 
 

2.  Professional Liability.  The Professional and any Professional sub-
contractor retained by the Professional to work on the Contract shall procure 
and maintain during and for a period of three (3) years after completion of 
this Contract, Professional Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 
per claim issued to and covering damage for liability imposed on the 
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Professional by this Contract or law arising out of any negligent or wrongful 
act, error, or omission in the rending of or failure to render professional 
services required by this Contract. The professional liability insurance may 
be issued on a claims-made policy form, in which case the Professional shall 
purchase at its sole expense, with extended Discovery Clause coverage of 
up to three (3) years after work is completed, if coverage is cancelled or not 
renewed.  
 
 

For work to be performed in New York State, the Contractor shall provide 
and maintain coverage during the life of this Contract for the benefit of 
such employees as are required to be covered by the New York State 
Workers’ Compensation Law (www.wcb.ny.gov).   
 
Evidence of New York State Workers’ Compensation and Employers 
Liability coverage and New York State Disability Benefits coverage, or 
exemption from coverage, must be provided on one of the following forms 
specified by the Commissioner of the New York State Workers’ 
Compensation Board.   For forms and guidance, the Board’s website is: 
http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/main/forms/Forms_EMPLOYER.jsp 

 
A.  Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage: 

 
• Form CE-200 -  Certificate of Attestation for New York Entities with 

No Employees and Certain Out of State Entities, That New York 
State Workers’ Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Insurance 
Coverage is Not Required); or 

• Form C-105.2 - (September 2015, or most current version) – 
Certificate of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, sent to the  Gaming 
Commission by the bidder’s insurance carrier upon request; or 

• Form U-26.3 – Certificate of Workers’ Compensation Insurance from 
the State Insurance Fund.  Bidder must request that the State 
Insurance Fund send this form to the Commission; or 

• Form SI-12 – Certificate of Workers’ Compensation Self Insurance, 
available from the New York State Workers’ Compensation Board’s 
Self-Insurance Office; or 

• Form GSI-105.2 – Certificate of Participation in Workers’ 
Compensation Group Self-Insurance, available from the Bidder’s 
Group Self-Insurance Administrator.  

 
B. Disability Benefits:   

 
• Form CE-200 -  Certificate of Attestation for New York Entities with 

No Employees and Certain Out of State Entities, That New York 
State Workers’ Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Insurance 
Coverage is Not Required); or 

http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/main/forms/Forms_EMPLOYER.jsp
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• Form DB-120.1 (September 2015 or most current version), 
Certificate of Insurance Coverage under the NYS Disability Benefits 
Law. Bidder must request its business insurance carrier to send this 
form to the Commission. 

• Form DB-155, Certificate of Disability Benefits Self-Insurance. 
  

All forms must name THE NEW YORK STATE GAMING COMMISSION 
as the Entity Requesting Proof of Coverage (Entity being listed as 
the Certificate Holder). 

All forms are valid for one year from the date the form is signed/ 
stamped, or until policy expiration, whichever is earlier. (ACORD 
forms are NOT acceptable proof of Workers’ Compensation 
coverage).   


	Acknowledgement of Amendment - Amd TwoFINAL.gpt.sarq.2.27.18
	5 Contract Form.C180002.REVISEDFinal
	30e Appendix N - Insurance - REVISEDFinal

